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7 September 2022 
 
Dear Kenneth, 
 

UPDATE ON 2022-23 SAVINGS 

 

In Parliament today I will set out the significant financial challenges we face as a result of the 
current UK cost crisis.  
 
This crisis is unprecedented. Since the advent of devolution, more than 20 years ago, Scotland 
has not faced a situation that has combined the significant reduction in the Scottish 
Government’s spending power with the massive impact of the cost crisis on households, 
families, businesses, public services and the third sector. 
 
I will therefore set out to Parliament the steps the Scottish Government has taken and will take in 
the near term to manage the nation’s finances, while taking steps to maximise the support we 
make available to help those in need. 
 
We are constrained in this task both by the limitations placed on our powers by Westminster and, 
in particular, by the fixed nature of our budget.   
 
Our budget was based on a UK Spending Review that did not anticipate the levels of inflation 
that have arisen, and which, according to the Bank of England, will deteriorate further. Our 
reserve funding is already fully allocated and we have no legal ability to borrow to fund pay costs 
or further cost of living support within the existing Fiscal Framework rules. We also cannot vary 
income tax in-year.  
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These constraints are in addition to the inflation-driven increases in government costs which we 
face and the need to meet significant commitments that are important but unbudgeted for, such 
as support to the Ukrainian displaced people as far as possible – all from within a largely fixed 
budget.  
 
Beyond the requirement to balance the Scottish budget, we have set ourselves the overriding 
priority of maximising the help we provide to those most in need.  
 
During the summer we therefore announced that we would conduct an Emergency Budget 
Review to tackle the challenges facing the public finances and help support those hit hardest by 
the cost crisis. 
 
It is against this background that the Government has approached the current round of pay 
negotiations in the public sector. As the First Minister set out to Parliament yesterday, our role in 
these negotiations is to maximise the support to the lowest paid as a crucial part of our response 
to the cost crisis. 
 
As a result of that commitment to helping households in the face of this crisis, the enhanced pay 
offers that have been made to date total approximately £700 million.  This includes the proposed 
settlement of the Local Government pay dispute, brokered by the Scottish Government last 
week, which required us to go further than planned and find additional savings to support a deal.  
 
We believe this is justified as the proposed settlement will see a significant uplift in the pay rise 
awarded to the lowest paid – with awards in excess of 10% - while capping the increases for the 
highest paid at £3,000. That is a demonstration of the Scottish Government’s commitment to 
using the pay awards as a way to support those most in need. 
 
Now, we must resolve the fiscal implications of these additional costs.  
 
As we have publicly set out, there is no unallocated funding available to cover these pay offers. 
The Scottish Budget is at the absolute limits of affordability and difficult reprioritisation is now 
required. 
 
While changes to budgets will be formally set out to Parliament in detail as part of the normal 
Budget Revision process, in the interests of transparency, I have included as Annex A to this 
letter a list of savings that the government has already identified to enable us to meet our 
increased costs, increase help for those hit by the crisis and fund enhanced pay settlements. 
 
For avoidance of doubt, further savings will be required to balance the budget, particularly if 
inflation continues to rise, and to direct maximum support to those who need it most. Any further 
savings that are identified during the Emergency Budget Review will be over and above those 
detailed here. I have committed to setting out the outcome of the EBR within two weeks of the 
UK fiscal event planned for later this month. 
 
Finally, the Scottish Government does not have access to many of the levers which would 
provide the greatest support in this crisis such as the power to adjust VAT on fuel, taxation of 
windfall profits or wider regulation of the energy market.  
 
I therefore reiterate my call to the new Chancellor that action must be taken immediately. They 
have reserved the most significant powers over this crisis to themselves. It is time they exercised 
those powers and helped families struggling to feed their children and heat their homes this 
winter. We will do everything we can, and we have utilised our limited powers and budgets, as 
set out by the First Minister within the Programme for Government to take forward a rent freeze 










